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From: Schultz, James D. EOP/WHO

To: David J. Apol

Subject: COD PACKAGE

Date: Monday, March 06, 2017 11:01:43 AM
Attachments: BANNON FINAL COD PACKAGE .pdf

Dave - Attached please find the COD package for Mr. Bannon. His draft 278 is available for review on integrity.
Jim
JAMES D. SCHULTZ

Senior Associate Counsel and Special Assistant to the President
Office of the White House Counsel
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THE WHITE HOUSE
Washington

March 6, 2017
MEMORANDUM FOR THE DIRECTOR OF THE QFFICE OF GOVERNMENT ETHICS.

FROM; James D. Schultz, Senior Associate Counsel to the. PrSSJdent and Designated
Alternate White House Ethics Official.

SUBJECT: Application for a Certificate of Divestiture for Stephen K. Bannon

Pursuant to 5 C.F.R. § 2634.1005(b), I am forwarding you a request from Stephen K.
Bannon for a cértificate of divestiture.

Consistent. with § 2634.1005(b)(1), I am enclosing the most recent draft of the'SF-278¢
new entrant report that Mr.. Bannon will be submitting consistent with normal procedures. My
understanding is that your office has agreed that this draft provides:a sufticient basis to assess
whether a certificate of divestiture is appropriate. '

Consistent with.§ 2634.1005(b)}(3), I am providing a brief description of Mr. Bannon’s
position. As Assistant to the President-and Chief Strategist to the President, Mr. Bannon will be.
advising the President on a broad range of issues which will certainly contlict with his interest in
businesses dedicated to strategic political consuiting and/or political messaging.

Consistent with § 2634. 1005(b)(2), I 'am providing an opinion describing why the
divestiture of the property at issue is reasonably necessary to comply with 18 U.S.C. § 208. As
you know, Section 208(a) provides that “an officer or employee of the executive branch of the
United States Government” may not “participate[] personally and substantially as-a Government
officer or employee .., in a judicial or other proceeding, application, request- for a ruling or other
determination, cont:ract claim, controversy,, charge accusation, arrest, or other pamcular matter
in which, to his knowledge, he, his spouse, [or] minor child, ... hasa ﬁnancxal interest.”™ This
law prohibits an employee from participating *“personally and substantlally ina partlcular matter
that “will have a direct and predictable effect” on a financial interest of the employee. 5 C.F.R. §
2640.103(a).

“Particiilar matters” that give rise to the prohibition under § 208 are “matters that involve
deliberation, decision, or action that is fouused upon the interests of specific persons, or a
discrete and identifiable class of persons.™ 5 C.F.R. § 2640. 103(3)( 1). A “particular matter”™
does not “cover consideration or-adoption of broad policy options directed to the interests of'a
large and diverse group.of persons,” but it does cover “legislation or policy makmg that is
narrowly focused on-the interests of a discrete and identifiable class of persons * including a
particular industry. /d. ‘OGE has explained that the term “partic ular matter” “covers:two
categories of matters: (1) those that involve specific parties ...,-and (2) those that do not involve
specific parties but-at least focus on the interests.of a discrete- and identifiable class of persons,
such as a particular industry or profession.™ OGE Advisory Op. 06 x9 at 7.
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The assets of Mr. Bannon' described below, if retained, would significantly hamper his
ability to fulfill his duties. These interests cover industries that could be affected by particular
matters on which Mr, Bannon would otherwise be expected to participate personal and
substantially. Pursuant to 5 C.F.R. § 2634.1005(b), I am forwarding. you a requést from Mr.
Bannon for 4 certificate of divestiture. As noted in his OGE Form 278e, Mr. Baniion owns interests
in two partnerships which engage in the business. of political consulting and messaging. While
Mr. Bannon has not yet worked on a particular matter involving or affecting either of these entities,
divestiture of this property is reasonably necessary so-that Mr. Bainoncan fully perfotm his duties
in the future and avoid: violation of 18 U.S.C. § 208.

Mr. Bannon’s continued ownership of the assets listed below will require him to recuse
from strategic policy related matters in which he would otherwise be called upon to participate in
order to avoid a violation of 18 U.S.C. §208. This would prevent him from being-able to perform
a material portion of his duties as Assistant to the President and Chief Strategist to the President
as the matters will have a direct and predictable effect on the industry.

Speciﬁcall-y', Mr. Bannon is seeking a certificate of divestiture for his financial interests
in the following holdings:

| Description of the property Quantity or % owned | Owner(s) of | Relationship to
' the property | the employee

Partnership Interest

CAMBRIDGE ANALYTICA LLC 562.5 combined Stephen K. Self
preferred & incentive Bannon
_ units
GLITTERING STEEL LLC 140 incentive units Stephen K. Self
Bannon

Mr. Bannon has agreed to divest his financial interest regard in the common stock within
ninety { 90)-days from the date on which it was determined by the White House Counsel’s Office
that it was reasonably necessary for him to do s0 to comply with the ethics laws.

~ Asthe Designated Alternate White House Ethics Official, I have determined that
divestiture of his financial interests in the above:mentioned assets is reasonably necessary to
allow Mr Bannon to perfonn the dutie's of Assistant to'the Presi'den't and Chief Strategi'st to the

......

regulatlons Contmued ownership ot these mterests woulcl 11m1t Mr. Bannon's ablllt} to perform
significant tesponsibilities of his position.
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Please let me kiow if 'you require further information or have any questions about this
matter,

CC: Stefan C. Passantino, Députy Counsél to the President, 'Deéi_'gnate_'d White House Ethics
Official
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The White House
Washington

March 2, 2017

MEMORANDUM FOR JAMES D. SCHULTZ, SENIOR ASSOCIATE COUNEL TO THE
PRESIDENT AND DESIGNATED ALTERNATE WHITE HOUSE ETHICS OFFICIAL

FROM: STEPHEN K. BANNON, ASSISTANT TO IDENT AND CHIEF

STRATEGIST TO THE PRESIDENT
SUBJECT: Request for a Certificate of Divestiture

Pursuant to 5 C.F.R. § 2634.1005, I write to request a certificate of divestiture for certain
property that I and other eligible persons seek to divest so that I can comply with 18 U.S.C.

§ 208 during my government service. I identify and describe the property that will be divested in
below and also identify the eligible person that holds the property.

Description of the property Quantity or % owned | Owner(s) of Relationship to
the property the employee
PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS
CAMBRIDGE ANALYTICA LLC 562.5 combined Stephen K. Self
preferred & incentive Bannon
units
GLITTERING STEEL LLC 140 incentive units Stephen K. Self
Bannon

[ understand that I am not entitled to a Certificate of Divestiture. | understand that I must divest
of the above property regardless of whether I receive a certificate of divestiture, and [ agree that I
will divest of the above property within ninety (90) days from the date on which it was
determined by the White House Counsel’s Office that it was reasonably necessary for me to do
so to comply with the ethics laws.

I also understand that if the Office of Government Ethics does issue a Certificate of Divestiture, I
will only be eligible for a tax deferral if I reinvest the proceeds from the divestiture of the above
property into either diversified mutual funds or treasury securities within sixty (60) days of sale.
I understand that it is my responsibility to seek tax advice from a personal tax advisor, and that
neither the White House nor the Office of Government Ethics is responsible for providing me
with guidance on the tax implications of the divestiture. Finally, I understand that if a Certificate
of Divestiture is issued to me, it will be publicly accessible pursuant to the provisions of 5 C.F.R.
§ 2634.603.

Please let me know if you require any additional information.





THE WHITE HOUSE
WASHINGTON

January 24, 2017

MEMCRANDUM FOR JAMES D. SCHULTZ
Assoeciate Cpunsel to the Presgident

SUBJECT: Designated Alternate Ethics Official for
the White House Office

By virtue of the authority vested in me as President by the
Constitution and the laws of the United States of America,
ineluding the Ethics in Government Act of 1978, as amended,

I hereby appoint Assgociate Counsel to the President, James D.
Schultz, as alternate designated ethics official for the
White House Office.

I hereby delegate to you the authority required to coordinate
@nd manadge the ethics program for this office.
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